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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Swelter Energy Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financia l Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swelter Energy Private Limited (""the 
Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2023 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the year ended. including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash r-low 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pol icies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 
2013 ('·the Act'') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confo1111ity wi th the 
accounting principles generally accepted in Ind ia. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31 ~, 2023, its loss including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in equity for 
the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the r nd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi ting 
(SAs). as spcci fied under section 143( I 0) of the Acl. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities fo r the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' 
section of our report. We arc independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. 
and we have fulfilled our other eth ical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audi t matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most signi ftcancc in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole. and in fo rming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 70 I is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted 
company. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report but docs not include the Ind AS financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is 10 read the other 
information and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements. or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If. based on the work we have perfom1ed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 26 of the financial statements. which describes the effect of 

As per the PPA. the company invoiced BESCOM at Rs. 8.4/- per unit but received Rs. 4.36/- citing a 
project delay. The company has appealed to KERC for release of balance 4.04 per unit for which KERC 
has ruled the appeal in BESCOM favour. The company appealed to Karnataka High Court. then 
wi thdrawn the case and has filed the appeal before APTEL New Delhi against the K ERC Order. 

The company pursuant to the directions issued by the Hon·ble Appellate Tribunal of Electricity 
( .. APTEL'") vide common order dated 24.11.2022 passed in Appeal No.182 of 2021 along with 
connected matters (""Common Order'·) approached the KERC Bengaluru. 

The KERC Bengaluru allowed the petition. the following order has passed by the KERC 011 

21.03.2023 
a) The petitions are allowed. 
b) The delay is condoned in commissioning of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and 

consequently tariff of Rs 8. -10 per unit is allowed as agreed in PPA. 
c) The respondent ESCO Ms are directed not to levy liquated damages and ({ already levied the 

same shall be refunded to the Petitioner within two months. 
d) The Petitioners are entilledfor inlerest at the rate of 10% p.a. for differential tar([ffor the 

period from the date of COD till date ofpayment. 
e) The Respondent ESCOMs are directed to make paymelll ll'ilh interest wilhin 90 days.from 

the date of this order falling which the Pelitioner is e111i1/ed for Lale Payment Surcharge 
from the date of defaufl fill realization. 

After the Final Judgement is passed by KERC. Bangaluru. the balance amount of Rs. 30.894 from FY 
20 17- 18 to FY 2022-23 will be recoverable by the company as per the order. Also. the liquidated 
damages paid earlier of Rs.1.000 is also recoverable. The interest entitled on the differential tariff and 
liquidated damages recoverable will be accounted on receipt basis. 



(Rs /11 ·OOOs) 

F.Y N umber of U nits Rate pc r unit Balance Amount 

2022-23 16.12.898 4.04 6.5 16 
202 1-22 15.49.649 4.04 6.26 1 
2020-21 15.02.159 4.04 6.069 
20 19-20 14.82.549 4.04 5.989 
20 18- 19 12.58.491 4.04 5.084 
2017- 18 2.41.309 4.04 975 

Total 30,894 

• The total amount of Rs. 4.053 (Rs.0.53 X 76,47.055) to be paid to the Farmer as per MOU from 
September 2017 till March 2023, has been recognized in the Financial Statements in the current 
financi al year. since the company is now certain to realize the amount from BESCOM owing to 
the KERC Order. This amount will be paid once the amount is realized from BESCOM. 

• Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Management's Responsibility for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company" s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ( .. the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financia l staterncnts 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the 
accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued 
thereunder. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
juclgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
abili ty to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, indivi9ually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of us · 1 on the 

<o(j C' 
~ 0 

* * (") FRN:0184155 1/1 
-:::f Chennal - 14 r: 
,;I) ~ 
~ ~<::-

'/'ea Acc0 



basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As pa11 of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional j udgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The ri sk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audi t 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section l 43(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financia l controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a go ing 
concern. If we conclude that a material unce1tainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Ind AS financial statements. 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative fac tors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued 



Government of India in terms of sub-section ( I I) of Section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013. we 

enclose in the Annexure - B. a statement on the mailers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the sa id 
Order. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best o f our 
knowledge and belie f were necessary fo r the purposes of our audit. 

(b) Jn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books: 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(cl) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules. 2015. as amended: 

(e) On the basis o f the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1. 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directo rs is disqualified as on March 31. 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act: 

(Q With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in .. Anncxure A .. to this report: Our report 

expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) According to the informatio n and explanations g iven to us and on the basis of our examination 
o f the records o f the Company. managerial remuneration has not been paid /provided. 
Accordingly. reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable: and 

01) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors· Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20 14, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanatio ns given to us: 

L The Company does not have any pending litigations \\·hich could impact its financial 
position. 

IL The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

Ill There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

rv. The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, 

1. o funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person or enti ty, including foreign entities 'Intem1cdiaries'. with the 
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the lnte 



whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' 
or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

11. No funds have been received by the company from any person or entity. including 
foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall. whether. directly or indirectly. lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee. 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

111. Based on audit procedures carried out by us. that we have considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly 
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act.2013 is not applicable 
for the year under consideration. 

vt As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 (as amended). which 
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail. edit log and related matters 
in the accounting software used by the Company. is applicable to the Company only wi th 
effect from financial yea r beginning /\pril I. 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Ruic 
I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not 
applicable. 

For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants. 
Firm No: 0 1641 SS 

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner 
Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 23214520BGWSZA5955 



Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our 
report to the members of Swelter Energy Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause ( i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

\Ve have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Swelter Energy Private Limited 
("the Company") as of March 31, 2023. in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 

o f the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Contro ls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jndia. These 
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that \\·ere operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of re liable 
financial information. as required under the Companies Act.201 3. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted o ur audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit. of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Report ing 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143( I 0) of the Companies 

Act. 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by the Institute 
of C hartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeq uate 
internal financial contro ls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was 

cstabl ished and mainta ined and if such controls o perated effectively in a ll material respects. 

Our audit im·olves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our aud it of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obta ining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based o n the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend o n the audi tor's judgement. including the assessment of the risks o f material misstatement of the 
financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffic ient and appropriate to provide a basis fo r 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financia l reporting with reference to these Jnd AS 
financ ial statements. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Re ference to these Financial 
S tatements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with general ly 
accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that 

( I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly renect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company: and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. 
use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to 
these Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with retercnce to 
these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
or any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects. adequate internal fi nancial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting wi th reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 

March 3 1. 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audi t of Internal 
f-inancial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm No: 01 4 I 5S 

rnr Bach 
ers 1ip No: 214520 

Place: Chennai. 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 I 4520BGWSZA5955 



Annc:xurc "8" to the Independent A uditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph I under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report to the members of Swelter Energy Private Limited of even date) 

I. Fixed assets: 

a) (A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations g iven to us. the 

Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of property. plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the 

management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us 

and as examined by us. no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by 

us. we report that. the Company does not hold any freehold land as al the balance sheet 

date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease. the lease 

agreements as per Power purchase agreement entered with farmer are in the name of the 

Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year. 

c) In our opinion and according to the in formation and explanations given to us. there arc 

no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 

propc1ty under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) /\et. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules 

made thereunder. 

2. Inventories: 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of books of accounts. the company does not have any inventory 
as on 31 st March 2023. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crorc 
rupees. in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets at any point of time during the year. 

3. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the books o f account. the Company has not made any investments in/provided any 
guarantee or security/granted any loans. secured or unsecured. to companies. fim1s. Limited 
Liabi lity Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 

Companies Act. 2013. Consequently. the provisions of clauses iii (a) lo (g) of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the company has not 
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments during 
the year as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly. clause 
( iv) of the order is not applicable. 



5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directi ves issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Compan ies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules. 2015 regarding to the deposi ts accepted 
from the public are not applicable. 

6. The maintenance of cost records has been speci fied by the Central Government under sub - section 
(1) of section 148 of the Act. in respect of the acti vities carried on by the company. However. the 

overa\l turnover from all its products and services is less than 35 crores in the preceding financial 
year. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) is not applicable to the company. 

7. In respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of account, and records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax. Sales tax, Service Tax. Good and Service 
tax (GST). Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There were 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above as at March 31, 2023 for a period 
of more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

b) According to the infom1ation and explanations given to me. there are no dues of income 
tax. sales tax. service tax, Good and Service tax (GST) outs tanding on account of any 
dispute. 

8. In our opinion and accord ing to the informat ion and explanations given to us. there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 196 I). 

9. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks or in the payment of interest thereon to any 

lender during- the year. The Inter Corporate Borrowings arc repayable on demand and terms 
and conditions for payment o f interest thereon have not been stipulated. According to the 
information and explanatio ns given to us. such loans and interest thereon have not been 
demanded for repayment d uring the relevant financial year. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

c) In our opinion and accordi ng to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not obtained any new tem1 loans during the year. 

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. funds raised 
on short ten11 basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes. 

c) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and accordingly. 
paragraphs 3 ( ix) (e) and 3 ( ix)({) of the Order arc not applicable. 

a) In our opinion and according to the infom1ation and explanatio ns given to us. the Company 
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly. clause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 



11. 

debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly. 
paragraph 3 (x) (b) or the Order is not applicable. 

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been 
noticed or repo,ted during the year. Accordingly. clause(xi)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

b) No report under subsection ( I 2) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in fo rm 
ADT-4 as prescribed under the rule I 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.20 I 4 
with the central government. during the and up to the date of this report. 

c) To the best of our knowledge and accord ing to the information and explanations given to 
us. no whistle-blower complaints. have been received by the Company during the year. 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore. the provisions or clause(xii) or the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me. all transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS Pinancial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

14. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as 
per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under aud it. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the info n11ation and explanations given by the 
management. the company has not entered any non-cash transact ions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly. the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

16. 

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank oflndia Act. 1934 and accordingly. the provisions of clause(xvi)(a) and (b) of 
the Order are not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanat ions given to us, the Company 
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the 
Group as a CIC. Accordingly. paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (d) of the Order are not appl icable. 

17. The Company has not incw·red cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

18. There has been no resignation of the statuto,y auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause(xvi ii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

19. In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment or financi rd 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledg ,____ r 



di rectors and management plans, there arc no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We. however. state that 
this is not an assurance as to the future viabi lity of the company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on facts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities fa lling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get 
discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. section 135 of the 
Companies act is not applicable to the company. Accordingly. reporting under clause3(xx)(a) and (b) 
of the order is not applicable for the year. 

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect or audit of Standalone 
financial Statements. Accord ingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this 
repo11. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 016415S 

rnay Kumar Bachhawat - Partner 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UOTN: 232 14520BGWSZA5955 



SWELTER E ERGYPRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40102KA2015PTC083352 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023 

ASSEl S 
NON-CURRE T ASSETS 
Property. Plant and Equipment 
f- inanc ial Assets 

Other Financial assets 
Total No11-C11rre11t A.'isets 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Fi nancial A set 

Trade Receivables 
ash and Cash Equi valents 

Other Current Assets 
Total Current assets 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
Eq uity Share Capita l 
Other Equity 
Total Equity 

LIABILITI ES 
on-Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 

Deterred Tax Liabilitic et) 
Total No11-C11rre11t liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrnwings 
Trade Payables Due to 

Micro and Small Entcrpri es 
Other than Micro and Sma ll Enterprises 

Other Financial Liabili ti e 
Other Cunent Liabi litie 
Total Current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 
As per our report of even date 
For Al3CD & Co, 
Chartered Accounta 
Finn No: 016415S 

,/ 

Vir _ 11 111< r Bachhawat -_ ~ 
embership No: 214520 

Place: hennai, 
Date: 22.05.2023 
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Notes 

4 

5 

6 
7 
8 

9 
10 

11 
2 1 

12 
13 

As at 
3I-Mar-23 

37,773 

1,896 
39,669 

30,632 
574 
166 

31,371 
71,041 

100 
40.089 
40,189 

22. 102 
997 

23,099 

2.880 

IOI 
482 

4, 173 
11 6 

7,752 
30,851 
71 ,041 

For Swelter Energy Private Limited 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
As at 

3 l -Ma r-22 

1/"ij 
~ 

tJ) 

,n.638 

1.806 
44.445 

24 .111 
915 
146 

25.1 72 
69,617 

100 
42.908 
43,008 

21.44 1 
548 

22,989 

_,880 

48 
554 
135 

2 
3,619 

26,608 
69,6 I 7 

Su,~iar Jain 
Director 

F~::1Kun 
DI : 07544759 
Place: Bengaluru 

Director 
DIN: 07162895 
Place: Benga luru 



LTER E IITED 
: 40102KA20 15PTC083352 
emcnt or Profit and Loss for the year ended 31. March 2023 

(R . /11 '000) 
For the car ended Fo r the Year endctJ 

31 -M:lr-23 31-Mar-22 

I COME 
Revenue Fr m Op rntions 

thcr Income 
Tota l Income 

EXP E 
Finance osts 
Dcprc iali n / Am rti ation Expe n. es 

thcr Expenses 
Total . pcnses 

Profit/ (Loss) Before tax 
. Less: Tax Ex pense · 

urrent Tax 
Deferred Tax 

Profit for the Period 
Other omprehcn ' ive I ncomc 
Item th at will not be rcclas ilicc.l to Profit or Lo 
Remea urcm 111 of defined ben fit obl iga ti . net 
Tota l omprchcn ·ivc lncom • for the year 

-amin ,. per cquit . hare (of face alue of R . I 0 each) 
Ba ic (in Rs.) 
Diluted (i n Rs . 

Weight d a rage equity share u ed in c mputing earning; per 
equil · har 

Basic 
Diluted 

• ee accompanying note to the Financial tatement : 1-32 
A per our report of even date 

16 
17 

18 
19 

20 

_I 

n . -4s 
658 

14,207 

2.748 
4,890 
7.803 

t - ,441 

( 1.235) 

449 
( 1.683 

(I 683) 

(168 .35) 

( 168.35 

10.000 
83,847 

I ~.01 7 

-1 5 
13,062 

2.91 5 

"· 56 
1.881 

I0,1 52 
2.909 

1.702 

1.207 

I 207 

120.73 
_9_9_ 

10.000 
79. -25 

F r B D & For welter Encrg Private imitcd 
hart r d Account a111 

Firm o: 016415 

inn Kumar Bachha, at - P:u 
lemb rship o: 214520 

Place: hcnnai, 
Date: 22.05.2023 

""'~'"' Jai,, 
Director 
DIN : 07544759 
Place: Ocngaluru 

r 

t3~~ ♦ b,~ 
Fr·~- run l r ;;::::,-
Director 
DIN: 07162895 
Place: Bcngaluru 



SWELTER ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
C IN: U40102KA2015PTC083352 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2023 (Rs. Ill "000) 

Particulars 
Fo r the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

A. Cas h now from ope rating activitie s 
et Profi t/ (Loss) before tax 

Adj 11s1111e n1s fo r: 

Depreciation 
Loss on Sa le o f PP E 
Interest income 

Interest expense 
Operating loss before working capital changes 
A djustments for ( increase) / decrease in opcraling assets : 

A djustments for increa e / (decrease) in operating liabilities : 

Trade Rece ivables 

Other Financial A ssets 

Other Current A ssets 

Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Other C urrent Liabilities 

ash used in operations 

et cash now from/ (used) in operat ing act ivities 

B. Cash now from investing activities 
Purchase o f tangible and intangible asse ts 

Investment in Fixed Depos it 

Interest rece ived 
et cash flow from/ (used) investing activ itie s 

C . Cas h flow from financing activ ities 
Proceed from / (Repayment o f) Current & on C urrent Borrowings 

Redemption of Debentures 
Interest Paid 

Is uc of Optionally Convertible Debentures 
et cash now from/ (used) in financing activ ities 

et increase/ (decreas e) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+ B+C) 
C ash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthc year 
Cas h and cash equivalents at the end of the period 

as h and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement 
Cash on hand 
Balance with banks in current account 
C as h and cash equivalents as per Balance sheet 

otcs 

( 1.235) 2.909 

4.890 5.356 
-, 

( 100) ( 4 1) 

2,748 2.91 5 
6,306 I I , 140 

(6,52 1) (5,76.,) 

( 1.806) 
(20) (39) 
( 19) ( 182) 

4.068 15 
114 ( 10) 

3,928 3 ,354 

3 ,928 3,354 

(28) (3.560) 
(85) 
95 4 1 

(18) (3 ,519) 

( 1,368) (4.840) 
( 1,478) 
( 1,406) ( 1.770) 

5.327 
(4 ,252) (1,283) 

(341) (1 ,447) 
9 15 2 ,362 

574 915 
574 915 

574 91 5 
574 915 

I . T he cash now tatement is prepared under Indirect M ethod a set out in Ind AS 7. Statement o f Cash Flows notified 
under ection 133 of l he Companie Act, 201 3. 

2. Reconciliation o f cash and cash equiva lents with the Balance Sheet. 
See accompany ing notes to the Financial Statements : 1-32 
As per our repo11 of even date 

for AB D & Co. 
hartered Accountai 

Firm N o: 01641 SS 

For Swelter Energy Private Limited 

l 

V1 umar Bach iawat - Par-t ner-
Mcmbership o: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22.05.2023 

Sun~ 1ar Jain 
Director 
DIN : 07544 759 
Place: Bengaluru 

Director 
DI N: 07162895 
Place: Bengaluru 



SWELTER ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40102KA20l5PTC083352 
Statement of Changes in Eq uity for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Rs. Jn '000) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars No of Shares Amount 

Equity sha res INR 10 each issued, s ubscribed and fully pa id 

As at 31st March 2022 10,000 100 
Issue of equity shares - -
As at 31st March 2023 10,000 JOO 

B. Other Equity 

Retained 
Equit)1 Component of Total cc1uity 

Particulars 
Earnings 

Compound Financial attributable to 
Instrument equity ho Ide rs 

As M 31 March 2022 (2,689) 45,597 42 ,908 
Add: ProfitJ(Loss) for the year ( 1,683) - ( 1.683) 
Less: Debe ntures redee med during the year - 1.136 -

As at 31 March 2023 (4,372) 44,461 40,089 

See accompany ing notes to the Financial Statements: 1-32 
As per our report of even date 
for AB D & Co, l· o r Swelter nergy Private Limited 
Clwrtered Acco untants 
17irm o: 0164 I 5S 

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat - Pat:tll~L 
Membership o: 2 14520 
Place: hennai , 
Date : 22.05.2023 

... 

Sun,&ac Ja;n 
Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Bengaluru 



SWELTER E ERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
ClN: U40102KA2015PTC083352 

otes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

I. Corporate Information 
SWELTER ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED is incorporated in Oct 2015 hav ing its registered office in Karnataka. 
registered under the Companies Act 2013. It is formed to act as a Specia l Purpose Vehicle (SPY) for the limited 
purpose to develop execute, manage and run olar power generati on project. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

a. Compliance with Ind AS 
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 (the Act) [ ompa ni es (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 20 15 (a 
amended)] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
Accounting policies ha e been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an ex isting accounting standard requi res a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
Details of the Company's significant accounting policies are included in ote 3. 

b. Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical co t ba is, except for the following: 
- certain financial as ets and liabilities (including deri ative instruments) that are measured at fair va lue; 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets mea ured at fair va lue; and 
- share-based payments measured at fair va lue. 

c. cw and amended standards adopted 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Compa nies (Indian Accou nt ing 
Standard ) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effecti ve I April 2022. 
These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods. 

d. Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of product /activities of the Company and the normal time between acqu isi ti on of assets and their 
realization in cash or cash equiva lents. the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpo e 
of classification of it assets and liabilities a current and non-current. 

e. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured u ing the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency' ). The financial statement are presented in Indian 
rupee, which is the Company s functional and presentation currency. 

f. Use of estimates 
In preparing these financial tatemenls, Ma nagement has made judgment . est imates and assumpt ions that affect the 
applicat ion of accounti ng policies and the reported amount of assets liabilities, income and expen es. Actual result 
could differ from those esti mates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounti ng estimates are 
recognized prospectively . 
.Judgements are made in applying account ing policies that have the 1110 t significant effects on the amounts recognized 
in the financial statements and the same is di closed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 
Assumptions and estim at ion uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjust ment are reviewed 
on an on-going basis and the ame is disclosed in the releva nt note to the financial tatements. 

g. Measurement of fair values 
Fair va lue is the price that, ould be received to se ll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tran ·action 

rket participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly ob ervablc or ij. 1 another val uation technique. In estimating the fa ir va lue of an asset or a liability the Company take . 
e characteristic· of the asset or liabili ty if market participants would take those character istics into 
ricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair va lue fo r measuren osu re 

dbe finan~ial statements is detenn!ned on such_ a basis and measure1~1cnts ~hat ha ie to 
' «re not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value 111 use 111 Ind 

~ >#- - .-, '<.)'< / 
'~-✓ 



In addition. for financial r porting purp es, fair aluc mea urcment ar categori cd into Level 1. or ba cd on 
the d ore to which the in put to th e fair va lue mca ure111 e11L are ob er able and lhc ·ignili can e of the inp ut to th 
fair aluc measu rement in it ent irety, whi ch are d scr ibed as follow : 
- Le cl I input are quot d prices (unadju ted in ,ictive nrnrkcts for identical a t or liabilitic that the 111ity can 
acce at the mca uremcnt date. 
- cvc l 2 input are inputs, other thnn quoted price included wi th in Leve l I, tha t are ob er nb le for the c1 et or 
liabilit . either directly (i.e.a · price ) r ind irect! (i.e., deriv d from price ): 
- Level 3 input are unobservable input · for the a I or liabilit '. 

3. Sign ificant Accounting Policies 

a. Rc\'enue Recognition 
Re cnue fr 111 c ntract with customer i r c gnised "h n control r the go d or ervicc are rendered to the 
cu tomcr at an amount that re flects the consideration to which the ornpany expects to be entitl ed in exchange ror 
tho ·e good or c1 ice . 
l{ e cnue is mca ured ba eel on the trnn acti n price, , hi h i the con idcration, adjusted for di count. and other 
inc 111i e • if any, a pecified in the contract , ith the cu t mer. Re cnue also exclude taxes or other a11101111t s 
collected from customers in it capaci t as an age nt. If the considera ti n in a contract include a variable amount. the 

ornpan c tirnat the am unt or consideration t which it, ill be entit led in exchange for transferring the go d II) 

the cu tamer. he variable con iderali n i estimated at contract inception and con train d until it is highl I probable 
that a ignificant revenue rever al in th amount rcumulati c re enue rccogni. eel, ill not occur when the associated 
uncertainty with the variable con ideral ion is subsequently reso lved. 

b. Property, plant and eq uipment 
i. Tangible 
Tanl!ib le proper\ . pl ant and equipment (PP E) acqui red by th e mpany are reported at acqu isiti n cost le . 
ac umulat d depreciation nnd accu111ulated impainnent lo. c . if any. The acqui ition co t include an co. t 
attributable for bringing an a t t it working condition net ofta.· dut red it availed. which c mpri e. fpurchas 
consideration and other directly attribu table co I. of bringi ng the a set. lo their, orki ng condition for their intended 
use . PP is rcc gni ed when it i pr bable that future economic benefi t a ociatcd with the item , il l now to th<: 

111pa11 and the o t of the item can be mea ur d reliably. 

ii. a pita I work-in-pro rcs · 
PP :: 11 t ready fi r the int -nd d u e 011 lhe da te of the Ba lance Sheet are disc lo ed a ''capital w rk-in-pro •re s"" and 
carri cl at co t. c mpri ing direct co t, r lated in id ntal e. pen e and attributabl inlere t. 

iii. Intang ible 
Intangib le a s t are rec gni eel when it i probable that the futu re ec n mic ben lit that ar attr ibutab le t the a ·et 

, ill llow to the cntcrpri e and the cot of the a et can be m a ured reliably. Intangib le a Lare tat d al original 
c t net ofta,' duty credit a ailed , if any. le a cumulated amort i ati n and cumu lative impairment. Administrative 
and !her ge nera l overhead expense that arc pec ifical l attributable lo the acquis ition or intangible a . ets me 
a llocated and capitali sed as a part of the cost of the intangible a ets. E ·pcnscs on oftware support and maintenance 
ar charged t the Stal mcnt of Profit and Loss during the car in , hich uch c I are incurred. 

iv. Intangible assets under development 
Intangible as et not read for the intended u e n the date of Oalance heel arc di closed a ·' lntangibl a ets under 
dev I pment''. 

v. De preciation and Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for tangible pro1 crt . plant and equipment is the L of an a I, or other amount ub. tituted for 
c I. le it tirnated r idual va lu . Depreciati n n tangible prop rt •. plant and equipment has been pro ided 11 

the wrillen d , 11 method< per th II eful life pr cribed in chedule II to th e ompanics ct, 2013. D preciation 
icwed at each financial year end lo refl ect cxpcctcd patlcrn of c n urnption of the rutur · economic 

benefits emb died in the a et. 
Th sl Da :-- cful lif and residual alues are al re iewed at each financial )rear nd, ith th effect ran~, chan!l,c 
• ,..,, " , ..... ., .J 

111 t l l alue i accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for add ition 
l uctions I vned a cts is calculated pro rata lo the remaining period of use. Depreciation charge for i1J1pair~d 
a -- . i adju I _ · l future periods in uch a manner that the revised carrying am unt or the a 
re ail ·u.g__u.s (o · 1fo. II capital a t , ith individual vain le than R . 5.000 ar deprec · l 1e car 111 

'i). 

"h 1 ,Ille , _ urchascd . * FRN:a 164 155 ~ 
g Chennal. 14 'E: 
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Estimated usefu l life considered by the Companv arc: 

Asset Estimated U ·cful Li fe 

Furniture Fittings I O Years 
Plant and Machin ncs 25 Years 

Air Conditioner 05 Years 

vi. rmpairmcnt of assets 
pon an b erved trigger rat the end of each accounting ear. the Compan re i , the carrying amount f iL 

PP -. in e tment propert and intangible asset t delermin , heth r there i an indication that the a set have uffercd 
an impairment lo . If such indicat ion cx i t the PPE, investment property and intangible assets ar le ted for 
impairment o a to detem1ine the impaim1ent lo . if any. 

Impairment loss i r cogni ·ed , hen the carryinu amou nt of an a ·.cl exceed it rec vcrable amount. Recoverable 
amount i the higher of fair alue le co t of di po. al and value in u e. 

vii. De-recognition of property, pl:rnt and eq uipment ;111d intangible asset 
/\n item of PPE and intangible a set i derecouni ed upon di po al or when no future economic benefit · arc expectl.!d 
to ari c from the continued u of the a et. n oain r I ari ing on th di po al or retir mcnt of an item or l'P :: 
i d tennined a the difference bet, een the ale proceeds and th carry ing amou nt or lhc a cl and i rccogni ·eel in 
the tatement of Profi t and Lo s. 

c. ash and Cash Equivalcnls 
F r the purpose of presen tat ion in th statement of ea h flows. ea h and c·1s h equ iva lents include ea h on han d. 
dcpo ils held at call with finan ial in titution other h rt-lerm. highly liquid in e tment with original maturitic. f 
three 111 nth or le. that ar rcadil convertible to kn wn amount of ea hand, hi ch arc ubjccl to an in ignificnnt 
ri k of changes in va lue, and ba nk overdraft. 

tl. Foreign Currenc. Trnn action 
f-oreign currency transaction are translated into the functional currency u in g the exchange rate al the date r the 
tran action . foreign exchange ga in and lo resulting from Lh settlement or uch trnn action and fr m th 
tran lation f monetary a et and liabilitie dcnominat d in fi reign curr ncie at year end exchan•e rate are 
genera l! recogni cd in statement pr fit and lo . A monetary item for which ett lemcnt i neith r plann d nor likely 
t occur in the fore cable future i con idercd a a part of entil · net in ~ tmenl in that fi reign pcration. on­
monetary a ets and non-moncta liabilitie denominated in a foreign currenc and measured al fair value are 
tran lated at the exchange rate pre al nt at 1h date when the fair :llue , a determined. N 11-1nonetary asset. and 
non-monetary liabi liti e den minated in a fo reign curr ncy and mcasur~d at hi torica l c st are Iran la ted a l the 
exchange rate prevalent at th date of tran action. 
• r ign , chang differen arisi ng on tran lati n of fi re ign currency borro, ing arc pre ented in th 1..nemen1 of 
profit and loss, with in fina nce costs. All other f reign exchange gains and losses arc pre ent cl in the stnte111c 111 or 
pr fit and I on a II l ba i , ithin other incom or other cxpen . 

c. Income Taxes 
The income tax exp · II e or er di t for the period i 
applicabl incom tax rat adju ted by hang 
cliff erencc and unu ed tax lo e . 

the tax pa_ ab le 11 the curr nt peri d' taxable inc me ba ed n the 
in cl fi.:rred tnx a et and liabiliti attributable t lemporar 1 

The current iucome tax charg is calculated on the ba i or the tax law enac ted or ub tantively enacted at the end of 
the reporting peri d. anagement periodical! evaluate po ition taken in ta r .1urn , ith r pect t ituations in 
, hi h app licable tax regulati 11 i ubjecL to interpretation. It establi hes pr ision where appropriate on the basi or 
amounts ex pected to be paid t the tax author ities. The mpany measures its tax ba lance for uncertain tax po it ion 
either ba ed on the 1110 t likel_ amount or the expected value. depending 011 which method provides a better prediction 
of the r olution of the unc rtaint . 
Deferred income tax is provided in ful l. using the liabil il method, on tempora ry difference · ari ing between the tax 

r a et and liabi lit ic and th ir car ing amount · in the financial tatements. Deferred inco111 · tax i not 
if it ari e from initial recognition of an a set or liabilit in a tran, action other than a bu ine 
tat the time of the tra nsaction affects neither accounting profi t nor taxable pro tit (tax lo .. ). Deferred 
termined u ing tax rates (and law ·) that have been enacted or ub tan tiall cnacte 

{ and are xpected t appl when the n.:latcd def rrcd incom tax a et is reali 
lily i settl ed. 

~h1;,~-,,_,... set are recognized for al l deductible temporary difference. and (; r unused tax 
1turc taxable amount wi ll be available t utilize tho ·c temporary difference and I 



D fc rred tax a et and liabilitie are IT et , hen there i a lega lly nforc abl right to offset current tax asse t n11d 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances re late to the same taxation auth rity . Current tax a sets and lax liabilit ies 
an.: offset where the nlity ha a le e:al ly enforceable right lo ofL et and intend either to settle n a net ba is. or to 
rcnl ize the a et and cllle the liabilit imultan ously \\ithin the amejuri diction. 

urrcnt and deferred tax for the yea r 
urrcnt and deferr d tax i r cogniz d in slat 111 nt or profit and lo exc pt to the extent that it relate to item 

recognized in other com prehensive income or direct!_ in cquit . In thi ea e, the tax is also recognized in other 
co111prehen iv income or dire tl in equity. re pcctivel 

r. Provisions, and ontingcncies 
Prov i ion are recogni zed wh n the ompany has a pre ent ob ligation ( lega l r constructi ve) a r ult I' a past ve nt. 
ii i probabl that the ompan will b required lo ettle the obligation, and a reliable e timate can be made r the 
amount of the obligation. 
The amounl recognized as a pr vi ion i the best estimate or the con ·ideration required to ell le lhc pre cnl obliga tion 
al the end r the reporting period. taking into account the ri sk and uncertaintie surround in the obligation. When a 
I rovi ion i measured using the ea h n w estimated to Ille the pre ent obligation, it carrying amou nt i 1he pre cnt 
va lue of those ea h now (when the effect of the time va lue of 111011ey is material). The li scounl rate used to determine 
the pre cnt alue i a pre-tax rate that reflect current market a ~- menl of lhe time value of money and the ri k 
pccific t the liabilit . The increa e in the pro i ion due to the pa age of time i rcc gnized a intere t expen c. 
Ii closur for contingent liabili1ies i made \ here there is a po . ible obl igation or a prese nt obligati on lhat mav 
pr babl~ n t require an outfl w of re ource or an ob ligation for which the future oulcome cannot be a ccrtai ned \\ it h 
rea onable certa in! 1 • When there i a p ible r a pre ent ob ligati n where lhc likeliho d of utflow of re ou rccs i 
remote. no provi ion or di clo. ure is made. 
Pro i ion for onerous contrac ts i.e .. contact whcre the ex pected una oidable co t r meeting th obligations umlcr 
the contract c. ceed the economic benefit expected to be received under it. arc recognized when it i pr bable lhat an 
outll ow of re ource embod ing economic benefit will be required to settle a pre. cnl obligation as a result or an 
obligatin, eve nt , ba cd on reliable estimate of such obli gation . 

J.:, Ea rnin •s Per hare 
(i) Basic earnings per share 

13a ic am ings per hare i ca lculated b di viding: - the profit a11rib11tablc I owner r the ., mpan~ - h ' 
th weight d a rage number of equity share utstanding during the financia l 1;ar, adju tc I for b m1s 
elements in equity hare is ued during the year and exc luding tr asury hares. 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share 
iluted earning p r hare adju ts the figure u. cd in th determination of ba ic earning per hare I take 

into ace unt: 
- the aft r-income tax effect of intere t and other financing cost as ociat d with diluti ve potential equity 
hare , and 

- the weighted a rage numb r of additional equity hares that would ha e b en outstand ing a 11111ing the 
c nversi n of all dil111ive potent ia l cq uil share . 
- potentially i uable equit share , that could potentiall dilute ba ic earnings per hare. arc not in luded 
in the ca lculation of diluted arning per shar when they arc anli-dilutiv for the period pr . cnted. 

h. Cash Flow Statement 
a h now are reported using the indirect m th d. , h reb profit for the peri cl i adju tcd for th effect of 

trnnsactions of a non-ea. h nature, any clef en-a ls or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or cxpen e a sociatcd \ ith in ve ting r fin:111ci n11 ea h flO\ . The ea h 11 , fr III operatino. 
111 e ting and financing activities of th ompany are ·egregated. 

i. F'in:rncial Instruments: 
The ompan recognize financial a cl and tinancial liabilitie , hen it be ome a party to the contractual provision 
of the in trument. All financial a sets and liabilities are rec gnizcd at fair va lue on initial recognition, except for trnde 
rcc · vhich arc initial! measured at tran action price. Tran acti n co ts that. are dire(;tly attributabk to tilt: 
ac r i ue of financia l a et and financia l liabili1ie . ,,hich are n tat fair va lue through pr fit or lo --. arc 

· ir alu on initial recognition. Transaction co t direct] att ributable to the acquis ition of financia l 
~ ia l liabilities at fair va lue through profil or loss arc recognized immediately in profi'. or lo . . 

\( ~ cla ifi its financial a cts in the following mea ur ment cntcgori : 
·\ 1easurcd subsequently n1· fair vain (c i1her through other comprehensive inco111 lit or 

ed at amorti ed co t. 



The classification depends on entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the cont ractual ter111s of 
the cash n°' . 
For assets rn ea ured at fai r val ue, ga ins and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investment in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the invest111ent i held. 
For investments in equity in truments, this will depend on whether the Com pany has 111ade an irrevocable election at 
the time of initial recognition to account fo r the equity invest ment at fair va lue th rough other co111prehensive inco111c. 
The Company reclassifies debt investment when and on ly , hen its business model for 111anaging tho_ e assets 
changes. 
Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial a sets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Cornp,my 
comm its lo purcha e or sa le the financial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Debt Instruments 
i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost 
A financial as et is subsequently measured at amort ized cost if it is held, ithin a business model whose objective is 
to hold the as et in order to co llect contractual cash nO\ and the contractual terms of the financia l asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash nows that are olely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount out landing. 
Interest income from the e financial assets is included in other income using the effective intere t rate method . /\ny 
gain or los ari ing on derecognition is recogni sed directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented a a 
eparate line item in statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 
A financial asset is su bsequently measured at fair va lue th rough other comprehensive income if it is held wi thin a 
bu iness model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash nows and selling financial asset and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on pecified dates to cash flows that are sole ly payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election fo r it 
investments which are classified as equ ity instruments to present the ubsequent changes in fa ir val ue in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model. 
Movements in the carrying amount arc taken th rough OC I, except for the recogni tion of impairment ga ins or lo ses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gain and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial 
a set is derecognized, the cumulative ga in or los previously recognized in O I is recla ified from equity to the 
tate1iie1H of profit and lo sand recognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from these financial 

assets is included in other income usi ng the effecti ve interest rate method. 

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
A sets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or rVOCI are measured at fair alue through profit or lo. s. A 
ga in or loss on a debt investment that is ubsequently measured al fair va lue through profit or loss and is not part of a 
hedging relation hip is recognized in profit or lo and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period 
in wh ich it arise . Interest income from these financial a sets is included in other income. 

iv) Equity Instruments 
The ompany subsequently mea ures al l equ ity investments at fair value . Where the Company has elected to pre ent 
lair alue gain and lo ses on equity inve tments in other comprehensive income, there is no sub equent 
reclassification of fair va lue gains and los e to profit or lo s following the derccognition of the investment. Dividends 
from such investment are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the ompany's right to receive payments 
is established. Changes in the fair va lue of financial as ets at fair va lue th rough profit or los are rccol.!nized in the 
statement of profit and los . Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity inve trnents mea ured 
al FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair va lue. 

v) Impairment of Financial Assets 
The ompany recognize loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets , hich 
are not fair val ued through profit or lo s. Loss allowance for trade receivable with no significant financing component 
is measured at an amount equa l to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets EC Ls are measured at an amount eq ual 
to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a sign ificant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in whic h case 
those are measured al lifetime ECL, as applicab le, as the case may be. The amou nt of ECL (or reversals, if any) that 
i , r ~1 to adju t the loss allowance at the reporting da te to the amount that is required to be recognized 1s 

1/''fa":! e 0 ttiP<!fJ.:, an impairment ga in or loss in the profit or loss. 
Id; ~ 
; (1) 

I, iabilities 
· ty and equit instruments issued by a Company arc class ified a either financial lia , 

vith the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a finan 11 

1111ent. 



· inancial liabilities ar subsequent! carried al amortized co t using the effective interest method. except for 
cont ingent con ideration recognized in a busin combination which i ·ub equently mca ured at fair alue through 
profit r I s. For trad and oth r payabl maturing within on y ar fr 111 the Balance h et dat , the car ing am )li nt 
npproximate fa ir va lue due to the ha rt maturity f the. c in struments. 

vi i) Der cognition of Financial In trumcnts 
Financial Asset 

financial a t i d r cognizcd onl , hen 
- the mpan ha tran ferred th right to rec i c ea h nm fr m the fi nancial a set r 
- retain the contract ual right to receive the ea h now of the financial a et. but assume · a cont ractual ob li!:!.ation to 
pa the ea h n , to one or m r rec1p1 nt . 
\ here the entit ha transferred an as et, th e ompany cva luat - , hether it has transferred substantially al l ri · k, and 
rewards of ownership of the financial a et. In uch ea e the financi al asset i · derecognized . Wher th en tity has 
n t transferred ub tantiall a ll ri ks and reward of own r hip of the financial a t th financial a set is not 
de recogni zed. 
Wh re the entit ha nei ther tran. ferrcd a financial a et nor retnin ub ·ta nt ia ll al l ri k. and reward or owner hip 

ft he financial n et. th financial a et is dcrec gn iz cl if the Company ha 1101 retained cont rol of the lin·rncial a ·. cl. 
Where the om pany retains contro l or the financial asset, th e asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of 
on tinuing in I ement in the financial ns et. 

Financial Liability 
A financial liability is dcrecogni zed , hen the ob li gation pcc ifi ed in the co ntract i di chnrged cance lled or exp ire . 

j. Leases 
The compan a es es ,, heth er a contract c ntain a lea cat th l.! inception of the contrnct. A contrac t i. , or conta in . 
a lea c if the c nlract n ey the right to cont rol the u c of an identiticd as cl for a period of time in ·xchang • for 
con id rn tion . T as e, s , hether a contract conveys th e right lo control the use of an identified asset, the company 
as e - e whether (i) the contract in lvc the u c of an identifi ed a l (ii ) the corn pan ' ha ubstantia lly all f the 
l:COnomic bendit fr m the u e of the a · ·et th rough the period of the lea. c and (iii) the company has the ri 1 ht to direct 
th e u c of the asset. The compan ha applied the exemption of not to rccogn izl.! Ri ght to Use a cts and liabilitic for 
lea e , ith le than 12 month of I a e term n the date of initial appl ication a a practical expediency. For 1he e 
h rt t rm and I , alue lea . 1he mpany recogni c. th e I a e payment a an operating expen e on a straight 

line ba i. over the term of the I ase . 

k. I nvcntorics 
In ent ri es (raw material - c mponent incl uding a semblic and sub assemblie are . tated at the lower of co t and 
net reali ab le al ue. t of invent include co t of purchase and all other co t incurred in bringing the 
invent ri es to their pr sent location and condition. Co t are a igned to individ ual item of in ventory on the ba is of 
weight d average method. Net reali ab le va lue i the estimated elling price in the ordinal)' course of bu in . le 
the estimated c t re mpleti n and the timat d co t nece. , ary to make the ale. 

I. Trade Receiva ble 
Trade recei abl arc amount due fr m customers for goods sold or crvic performed in the ordina co ur--c of 
busine and renects company's unconditional right t con ideration (that i , payment i due nly on the pas age or 
time). Trade rece ivables arc reeogni ed initial! at the transaeti n price a th do not contain ignificant fin anc ing 
compon 111 . The company hold. the trade receivables, ith the objective of col lecting the contractua l cash nows and 
thcref re measures them ubscquently at amorti cd co ·t usi ng the effec tive intere t method. le loss a llowan ·e. 
The mpany cla ifie the ri nh t to con iderntion in xchan •c Ii r d li vcrable a either a r cei abl r a unbi lled 
r venu ' . 
/\ recci ab le i a right t con. iclcration that i conditional on l upon pa age f time. Revenue in exces of bi lling is 
recorded as unbilled re enuc and i cla ified a a financial a set a nl .. th pas age f time i r quircd befor the 
pa menl is due. Invo ic ing in exce s or earning are las ified as contract liabi lities which is di sclosed as cl lcrred 
re enuc. 
Trade rcceiv:ibles and unbilled revenue are pre ented net of impainnent in the Balance. heet. 

rn. Tracie Pa •ables 
· z==~~ represent liabilities fo r oods and serv ice provided to the Company pri r to the end or linancial year 

/,, a id . Th · amounts are u. ually uu ecurccl. T1.·ade payables arc presen ted as currc unle 
/0 clue within twcl e month after the rep rtin ° period. The are recognized in 
\ , tly mea urcd at amorti ed cost u ing the effecti intere t method . 

..,/ 



n. Borrowings 
13orro, ing · are in itia l!_ r cognizcd at fair value. net of tran. action cots incurred. Borrowing arc ub cquent ly 
mca ured at amorti d co 1. Any difference between the procc cl (net oftrnn ac tion co t and th e red em ption amount 
is recognized in profit or loss o er the p riod of the borrowings u ing the cffecti c interc t method. Fees paid n thc 
e tab Ii hm nt of I an facilities arc rec gnized a Iran ·a lion c t of the I an to the extent that it i probable that 0111 

or all of the facil ity wi ll be dra, 11 down. In this case, the fee is d ·!erred unt il the dra, down occur . T the extent 
there i no c idenc that il is pr bable that m or all of th facility will be dra, n do,\11. the fee i capi tal iz d a: a 
prepayment for liquidity crvice and arnorti eel o er the period of the facility to , hich it re lates. 
13 rr wing · are removed fr m the balance sheet when the obligati n pecifi din the contract i di chan.?.ed. cancelled 
or xpired. · he difference between the carrying amount of a financial liabil it that ha b next in •u ished or Iran ferrcd 
to another party and the consideration paid , inc luding an non-ea h a et transferred or li abi litic a umcd. 1 • 

rec 0 ni d in tat ment r profit and 1 under ther expen 
Borr wi n , are cla sified a cu rrent liabilitie. unless th e ompany has an uncond itional right l o defe r sct1lc111cnt )f 
the I iabi I ity for at I a t 12 month afler the report ing period. Where there i a br ach or material provi ion of a Ion!! 
term loan arrangement on or before the date of the reporting period with the effect th at the li ab ili ty be omes paya ble 
on demand on the reporting date, the mpan does not classify the liabilit a curren t. irthe lender a 1rced. al"ler th ' 
rep rting p riod and b fore approval of the financial . tat mcnts for i sue, not to demand pa 111 nt a a con cquen e 
of the breach. 

o. Exceptional items 
When an it m or in come r ex pen e wit hin tateme nt of profi t and lo s from ordinary acti it i 
or incidenc that it di closure i relevant to explain the perfonnance of the ompan for th 
amount of uch item i di closed as exceptional item ,_ 

(!/ I ;.,J 

·" ~ pace i left intenliona lly blank---
Ji 

* \1'3,j ---- .,.- ,,. 

of uch izc. nature 
ear, the nature and 



-I. Property Plant and Equipment 

Tangible Assets 

De cription 

Gross Block 
Balance as at 31 s t March 2022 

Addi tion 

Del 1ion 

Balance as at 31st larch 2023 

Accumul:1ted Depreciation 

Balance a at 31 st Ma rch 2022 

Charge for the yea r 

Di po al 

Bahrnce as at 31st March 2023 

et Block 
Balance as at 31 s t March 2023 
Balance as at 31 s t March 2022 

5. Other Financial s et - on-current 

Ba nk Depos its 

Total 

6. Trade Reccivabl s 
( 11sec11red 

T rade Reccivabl s 
Total 

Ageing ofTradc Receivables: 

Pai1iculars 

As at 31st March 2023 

Total 

March 2022 

ed Trade receivabl 

d Trade Recei abl 
Total 

Refer ote 25 & 26) 

7. Ca hand asb Equiv.,lcnt 

Ca h on hand 

Ba I nee with Banks 

I · · nt Ace unts 

D po i1s 

Plant & Air 
Furniture 

Machinerv Conditioner 

71,810 - 26 

- 28 -
- - 26 

71 810 28 -

29,175 - 22 

4.877 12 I 

- - 23 

34,052 12 -

37 758 I - -
42,635 - 4 

sat 

3 I-Mar-23 

1.896 
1,896 

30.6 2 
30,632 

(Rs. /11 ·oOOJ 

Total 

71,836 

28 
2 

71 837 

29,198 

4.890 
2 

34,064 

37,773 

42,638 

s at 

31 -M ar-22 

1.806 
1,806 

_4.111 
24, 111 

Outstanding for following periods from due d.ile of payment 
Le s than 6 Montlr 1-2 2-3 3 •ears and 

Total 
6 Months -l Year cars years above 

4.229 3,027 6,261 6 069 l l.047 30.6 _ 
4 229 3,027 6,261 6,069 11047 30 632 

1r T'S 

3.287 2.974 6,069 5.989 5,057 _J.376 
4,022 2 974 6 069 5 989 5 0~7 24,111 

57 9 15 

a h ~qui al nt a per Ba lance Sheet 574 915 

<;~ h qui a l nt a per ash FI , ta le 574 915 



8. Other Current As cts 
( /IS, ·ur •d. 011siderecl ·ood) 
Ba lance , ith G t A ulh ritie 

0th rs 

Tot:11 

9. Share Capilal 

at 

31-Mar-23 

25 
14 1 

166 

A~ at 

(Rs. Ill '000) 
As at 

31-M ar-22 

5 

14 1 
146 

A at 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

uthori ·cd 

10,000 ·quity hare on 10 each 

Iss ued, ub cribed and Paid up 

10,000 [qu it hare r~ 10 each 

100 
100 

100 
100 

u.Recom:iliatio11 of tlte shares 0111.,·tamling at the 

he;:i1111i11g a11d at tlte end of tlte reporting period 

Eq1ti(I' Share.,· 

31 March 2023 

/\t the co111111enccment or the ear 
, hare i ued during the ear 
Al the end ofthe year 

umber 

10000 

10,000 

h.Rights, preference.,· and restrictions (l/l(lc/,et/ to eq11ily share.,· 

Amount 

100 

100 

100 
100 

10 
l00 

31 March 2022 
Number mount 

10,000 100 

I0,000 100 

Th c mpa n has a single cla of cquit hares. ccord ingly. all equity hare ra nk equa l! with rega rd t di ide nd and 
hare in the company' residual as ets. The equity hares are entitled I rece i c divid nd a dec lared from time to lime 

a fter ubjec t t di idend to pr fe rence har holder . The oting rights fa n equit har hokkr on a poll (n t show r 
hands) ar in proporti n to its hare of the paid-up equity capital of the c 1npa11y. 

n-. inding up f 1he company, 1he holder of equity har will be entitled to rece ive the residual as e ts or the company, 
re maining afte r distribution fa ll pr fcre ntia l amounts in pr port i n to the numb r of cqu it ha res he ld. 

c:. Particular.\· ofs-/u,reho/tlers lto/tli11g more than 

5% shares of a c:/(lss of shares 

Equity shares of JO ach fu lly pa id he ld b 
Re fex Green Power irnited* 

njinamma 

d. Particulars uf shareholdi11g of 
/>romm •r.,· 

Equ ity share on: 10 each fully paid held by 
Rcfex rcen Power Limited* 

umber 

7.400 

hrch 2023 

7.400 

2.600 
I 0,000 

31 March 2023 

(% of total 

shares ) 

74% 

26% 
100''/o 

(% or (% orchangc in umber 
total shares during 
hare ) the year) 

74% 0% 7.400 

31 March2022 

Number 

7400 

2,600 

I 0,000 

(% of total 

s hare ) 

7 % 

26% 

31 March 2022 

( 0/ii or (% of change in 
total s hares tlurfog 

shares ) the ·c:1r) 

7% 0% 
.. 2.600 26% % 2.600 26% 0% 

10,000 100% 0% 10 000 100% 0% 

111 5111 May 2022 the name of the Company was changed from Rooftop 
fex Gr en Power Pl'i\•ate Limited .. . Furt her wi th effect from 10'" May, 202 , the , 
11 'Rcfcx Green Power Pri\latc Limitctl" to ··Refcx rccn Power Limitcll'· . . , 



JO. Other Equif) 

Retained Earning-; 
Equity mpon nt or optionally convertibl preference hare 

Total 

RET Al ED EARNI GS 
Op ning Balance 

dd : urplus/Lo during tl year 
Closing Balance 

B EQ IT OMl'O . T OF COMPO ND FI A IA 
l TR ME T 
Opening ba lance 
Add: Shares / debenture issued during the year 

e . : D benturc redeemed during the year 
Le : Liability component or P / 0 D 

lo ing Balance 
Total 

sat 

31-Mar-23 

(4.372) 
44.461 

-'0,089 

(2. 89) 
( 1.68 ) 
(4 372) 

45.597 

1.136 

-1-1,461 
-10,089 

(R~. In '000) 
As at 

31-M.u-22 

{2.689) 
➔ 5.- 7 

-U,908 

(J .896} 

1.2 7 

(2,689) 

41. -os 
5_., - 7 

'-- ,, 
-15,597 
-12,908 

The compound financia l in trument relate to the Optionall , con 
convertibl debentur 'O D') i ued by the company. 

ertiblc pref crence hares ('O p ') and Opti nall 

Option:111 Con ertible Preference Shares ('OCP '): 
As at A· at 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Authori cd share cnpital 
80.000 Pr fer nc shar s f ~ I each 800 8 0 

800 800 
Is · ucd ubscribcd and Paid up share capital 
69.012 Optionally C nvertible Preference har s ft I O each 690 690 

690 690 

a.R •co11cililllio11 of the shares 011tst111uli11J.: at the 31 I larch 2023 31 March2022 - - - - ----- - - - - ------- - --
he;; i 1111 i II g mu/ at the em/ of tlte reporti11,: perind 

OpriouallJ couvertible Preference Shares 
At the commencement f the ear 

Shar is ued during the year 

Shares redeemed during the ear 

At the end of the year 

Number 

69.01_ 

69,012 

b.Rights, preferences a11d restrictions attached to preference shares 

Amount Number mount 

690 69.012 690 

690 69,012 690 

0.0 I % rtionally c nvertible n n-cumulati preferen e share were i ucd in the 111 nth of arch' 19 6 7 _4 

hare @ R . I 0· Pr mium f R . 708) ' December' 19 (5288 hare t Rs. I 0· Premium of R ·. 708) pursuant 10 the 

hare holders agreement. Optionall_ convertibl 110 11 - cumulati preference hare are con ertible into equit • hare 
f par a lue R . I 0/- in the ratio of I : I. 

These preferenc ·har s are c n ertible at an Lime on or befor the end of nin tecnth ear from the dat or is uance 

at lh opt ion f the compan . Preference hare hall be mandat ril c nverted to equity sha re upon completion or a 
period of 19 year and I 1 m nth from the date of is uance anu allotment f such preference hare . Th h Icier: f 

• entitled to a non-cumulative dividend 0.01%. Preference share · can-y a · 

quity hareholder . The preference share are entitled to one ote per sl 

resolution of th ompany directly involving their ri ght . 



c. Partic11/ar.\· of s/wreholders holdi11g more tlta11 

5%slwres of a class ofslwre.'i 
Refex r en PO\ r united* 

•(Refer 'ule _J) 

Optional!,· onverlible Debentures ('0 D'): 

1- ucd ubscribcd and Paid up 
Optional I Convenibl Debentures of · I O each 

11. Reco11cilialitm tif the debe11t11re.\· 011t.\·t11111/i11g at the 
hegim1i11g am/ at tlte end of tlte reporti11,: period 

Optiu1111/ly ctmvertible Dehe11111re.v 

At th ·omm ncemcnt of the yea r 

Debenture is ued during the year 
Deb nture redeemed during the ca r 

t the end of the )'Car 

(Rs. !11 '000) 

31 March 2022 

69,012 100% 

Number 
69.01 2 

% 
100% 

69,012 69,012 

:it31 March2023 Asal31 March2022 
Number Amount umber Amount 

48"5 48 6,692 
4,835 48 6 692 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

umber Amount umber Amount 

6692 67 
6.69_ 

1,857 19 
4,835 48 6 692 

67 
67 

67 

67 

b. Right.'i, preference.,; anti restrictio11s 111tacf,ed to Dehe11t11re. 

0.0 I % ptionally con ertiblc debenture , ere · ued in the month of arch '_2 6692 debenture @ R . I 0: Premium 

of R .786) pur uant to th debenture hold r' agreem nt. Opt ionally on ertible debentures nre convertible into equity 
hare of par va lue R . I 0/- in the rati of I : I. In the month of June '2_. I 098 debenture • eptember '22. 67 d bcnture , 

December '22, 343 debenture and arch' _3_ 3 19 <l bentur s wcr reel' 1neJ b th holder nl issu price. 

These debentures are convcrtibl at anv time on r before the e11d of 11 inctee111h year from the date f is unnce a t the 

pt ion f the holder. The h lder or these debentures arc entit led to an interest of 0.0 I% on par a lu or d ' bcntur .. 

T he dcbentur holders are entitled to one ate per debenture at meet ing of th Comrany on any re solution. of th 
mpan dir c lly in I ing their r ight . 

c. Particulars of dehe11t11erlwlr/ers ltoldi111: more titan 
5% dehe11l11re.\· of a class ,if rlebe11t11res 

Refe. Green Power Limited* 

*(Refer ol , 2 3) 

11. Borrowin •s- Long Term 
ECURED 

Borra, ings from Banks & FI 
L _: Curr nt Maturiti of L ng term Borrw ing · 

Total 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
umber '1/o umber 01,, 

4.835 
4,835 

100% 
100% 

· al 
3 I-Mar-23 

11.567 
(2,880) 
8,687 

6.69_ 

6,692 
100% 

I 00°1., 

As at 
3 J-Mar-22 

12,863 
(2,880) 

9 983 

Bank Barro, ing inc lude the Term loan ancti ned o f Rs 3.50 crores during the ear 2017-18,. The I an i repa able 
b v 2026. Loan i eeured by h pothceation fall Plant & Machin ries pr cured for etting up the prQject , fomler· 
land of 5 acres, personal guarantee of Sunny handrakumar Jain. A nil Jain Anjinamma.T, ollatera l ecurity r Egallur 
Propert mea uring 17_5 q.feet held b ' nil Jain Corp rate guarantee of h r isha olar LLP. R fox lndu trie, Limited 
' heri ha Technologies Private Limit cl , as ignmcnt of Pow r Purchas Agreement and Pledg of 5 1% of Promoter 
hare. The I an carries an intere l rate of 11.65% as on 1.0 ... . 2023 (3 1.03.2022: 9.15%). 

rate Depa it from Relat d Pnrt 
mponent of OCP / 0 D 13,415 

13,415 

7?.. 
12.386 

12,-158 



Inter orp rate L ans are taken for working capita l requirements. The loan ca rri es an interest rate of 8% per annum 
(P. } - 6.5% per c1111111111 on the out landing amount. 

12. Borrowings - u.-.-e nt 

urrent maturities n longtcrm borr w mgs 

Total 

13. Trmle Payable Due to 

Micro and Small - nterprise 

Other than licro and ma ll Enterpri 
Total 

Al.!cine of Tnulc Pavablcs · . 

' at 

3 t-Mar-23 

2 880 
2 ,880 

101 

482 
583 

(Rs. 111 ·uoo 
A at 

3 1-M ~lr-22 

2.880 
2 880 

48 
554 
602 

Outs tandinl-?, for follow in~ 1lcriods from due date of payment 
P~1 rticula rs Les than 

one year 

IAs at 31 s t March 2023 

(i) MSME 

(ii) Others 

Total 

As at 31st March 2022 

(i) MSM E 

(ii) Others 

Total 
(Refer ote 2./) 

14. Other Financial Liabilities - urrent 

l ntcre L accrued but not due on borro, mg 

Payable to r-armer* 

O ther Pa_ able 

Total 

*(Refer ole 26) 

15. Other urrent Li.ibilitie 

latut ry Du (G T TO . et .,) 

1 otal 

I 6. Reven uc from Operntions 

ale r Po-.: er 
Total 

17. Other Income 

I OI 

481 
583 

48 
9 

57 

1-2 years 

-
-
-

-
-

-

2-3 years 
3 

-
-
-

-
-
-

·cars and 
abo,1 e 

4.053 
120 

4 173 

116 
ll6 

-
-
-

-
545 
545 

Total 

101 
48_ 
583 

48 
554 
602 

30 

135 

2 
2 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 

31- lar-23 31- lar-22 

13,548 
13,5--'8 

100 
558 
658 

I .017 
13,017 

4 1 

45 



18. Finance Co ·t 
lnt re st cost 

In te rest o n Int er 01po ra1e D •p us it.~ 

Co111111i1111e111 t,11 r es1 - Term l oan 

/11/ e r esl 0 11 Tenn Loan 

/111 er est o n Financia l Liability - 0 ~o 
l11teres1 on Financial liob i/it; - OCl'S 

Total 

19. Depreciation & mortisation 

Deprec iation 
Total 

20. Other Expenses 
Rate s and Taxes 

Lo s on ale of PPE 

Bank Charge 

Pr fc i nal Fees 

Pa ment l udit rs 

Tra v ll ing Expen e 
Operati ns and Maintenance 

Reba te 

Pa m nt ~ r Farmer's hare* 

Insurance • xpenses 
Ii ce llancous ·pensc 

Tota l 

Paymc nt to uditors 

Sta tutor udit 

ert ificati n a nd ther harg s 
To t~1 l 

"(Refer ote 26) 

21. Tax Expen cs 

urrent Ta.x 

D fcrred Tax 
Tax re ported in Profit & os 

A Deferred Tax Liabillics/As sct - Net 
Defe rred Tax Liabilitic 

Fixed a set : I mpacl of difference betw en ta x deprec iation 
and depreciati n/arn rtisati n for financia l re rting 
·ffi t fc l ffinancc 

ross De le rrcd Tax Liabil ity 
sscts 
finance 

nabsorbed D pn Lo es 

d Tax Liability 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
Fo r the car ended For the Year ended 

31-M ar-23 3 1-M ar-22 

2,748 
2 

/02 

I ·- J 

n 
1.302 

2,748 

4,890 

.t,890 

4 

3 
92 

__ 002 

2T 

864 

28 1 

4,05 

17 

57 
7,803 

210 

65 
275 

44 
449 

As at 3 1 March 
2023 

8 . .> 77 
52 

8,429 

7,432 
7,432 

997 

2.9 15 

-
I(}_ 

I ,Jr,_ 

7 

/ . / 6 -

2,9 15 

5. 56 
5,356 

15 

70 
., .,") .,_ 
269 

2 

801 

146 

1"8 

109 
1,881 

19-

74 
269 

1.702 
1,702 

As at 3 1 March 
2022 

, .85--1 

8 854 

5_ 

s.2 -4 
8,306 

548 



B Reconciliation of Deferred Tax liability 
Opening Dcfcrrcc.J Tax Laibili~• 
Deferred Credit recorded in Statement of Profit ' Lo • 

Deferred Tax change r corded in I 

Dcfc.-red Tax LiabiUics/Assct - et 

22. Earnings Per hare (EP ) 

a. Weighted a erage number or equity shares utstamling during 
the p riod 

b. :: rn Cl r diluti common cqui a lent hares - Opti nally 

on ertiblc Debenture 

c. · ffcct of dilutive common cqui alent hares - Optionally 

onvertiblc Preference hare 

d.wcightcd average number ofequit shares and common 

equi a lenl hare out landing 

Diluted Earnings 

Profit ftcr Tax 
Add: Interest on financial LiabilitJ - 0 P 
Add: Interes t on Financial Liability - 0 D 

Tot~tl Dilutive Earnings 

Earnings per equity s hare of face va lue f R . 10 each) 

Ba i (in R. ) 
Diluted* (in R 

sat31March 
2023 

-4g 

449 

997 

31-Mar-23 

10.000 

4.835 

69.012 

83,847 

( 1.683) 

1,302 

70 
(312) 

( 168.35) 

( 16 .35) 

(Rs /11 ·ooo 
As al 31 March 

2022 

( 1.154) 

1.702 

548 

3 I-Mar-22 

10.000 

51 

69.0I _ 

79 52$ 

I __ ()7 

1.165 

7 

2,379 

120.T' 

29.92 

*As the c mpany has incurred los during the year ended 31 larch -02 . dilutive effect on weighted a crage number 
of hares would have an anli-dilut iv imp..1c1 and henc . not con idcred in Diluted -P computnti n. 

23. R latcd Party Transaction 

List ofRch,ted Partic 1 

Name of the related pai-ty and nature of relation ·hip 

:une of the Related P:111:y 
2 

rs / nol1..?.ie Pvt Ltd 
·tron ics Private irnitecl 
akumar Jain 

1 a identified b the management and relied upon b the auditor ' s. 
2 \ ith effect from 25th ctobcr 2022 . the name f the 0111pan, wa changed from · unedi on Infra tru ture 
Limited ' to '"Refcx Rene, able & lnfr:uructure Limited". 
J With effect from 5th Ma 2022, the name fthe mpany wa · changed fr 111 · IL Rooftop olar Po\\cr Private 
Limited· Lo · Refex Green Power Pri ate Limited''. Fu11hcr with effc t from I Olh Ma 2023 th e name of the 

ompan wa ehan 1ed fr 111 'Refex Green P wer Private Limited' to "Refc.x Green Power Limited". 

,.;<✓(lergy ,o'l_ 

./ 

? 



(Rs /11 '000) 

B. Tran actions with Related Parties 

Nature of the Tran action amc of Related Part 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

De nture Redeemed 

· ice) 
R~lcx Green Pm er Limit d 1.478 

2 
harucs 763 

Anjinamma 4,05'' 

377 
449 

Balance as at year c nd 

aturc of the Tran · action 1 amc of Related Part)• 
For the ear ended For the car ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 
I Creditors Rt:lcx Rcnewablcs & Infrastructure 63 6 

Creditors Megamic Elec tronics Private Limited - 10 
Payment for Farmer's Share Anjinamma 4,053 -
Loa n Payable Ref ex Green Power Limited - 72 
Interest Payable Rcfex Green Power Limited - 30 

2-t Di ·closures required under Section 22 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises De clopmcnt Act 2006 

Th manag ment ha identified certain enterprises which have provided g d and ser ice to the Com pan . and which 
qualif under th d finition of 'Mier and Small Ent rpri 'a defined under Micro, mall and cd ium ·nterpri s 
Development Act 2006 (" the A t"). Accordingly, the discl ure in respect of th e amount payable t such entcrpri ·c. 
a at 3 1st March 2023 and 3 1st March 2022 ha e b n made in the ri11ancial latcmcnt ba ed n informati n availab le 
, ith tit ompan and rel ied up n b th e auditor . 

Pm1iculars 

(i) Princi1 I am unt remaining unpaid co any supplier a a l 

th e nd r the accounting yea r 
( ii) Inter s t du there n remaining unpaid l an supplier as 
at the nd of the accounting ea r 

iii) T he a mount f int rest paid al ng with the nm unt. f 
the payme nt made to the supplier beyond the ap1 inted clay 
(i ) The amount of int r st due a nd payabk: for the ear 
( ) 'he a mount f int rest a c rued and r maining unp:1 id at 
the nd of the accounting year 
(vi) The amount f fu11her int rest due and payable eve n in 
the succc ding year. until such date, hen the int rest du -
a. abo are ac tua ll pa id 

·-=--

As at sat 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

IOI 48 



(Rs /11 '000) 

25. Fair alue Mcasur menl 

A. Financial lnstrumcnl b · Calcgory 

Pa11icula1 - As at 31 March 2023 Fair aluc hicrarch 

Financial ssc ts 

Trade Receivables 
a. hand ea h equivalent 

Other f-inancial Assets 
TOT SET 

Financial Liabilities 

Bon-o, ing 
Trade Pa able 
Other Finan ial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITJE 

Amortised cost Level 1 

30.632 
-74 

1,896 
33,102 

2 ,982 

583 
4.173 

29,738 

Level II Level Ill 

Particulars As al 31 March 2022 Fair value hierarchy 

Financial Assc t -
Trade Recei able 

ash and cash equivalents 
Other Finan ial set 
TOTAL A SET 

Financial Liabilitic 

B rr , ings 

Trade Pa able 
Other Financial Liabilities 
TOT AL LI BI ITIES 

Fnir aluc hicrarch 

24.111 
915 

1.806 
26 833 

25,321 

602 
135 

26 058 

Level I - Quoted price (unadjusted) in active market for i le ntica l as et or liabililie . 
Lc,•cl 2 - Input other than quoted price included\ ithin evel I that arc ob c abl forth a tor liabilit • either 
directly (i.e. a price ) or indirectly (i.e. Deriv d fr 111 pric · ). 
Level 3 - lnpul for the a t or liabilitie that are n t ba ·ed 0 11 bservable market data (un b crvablc input ). 

ccordingly, the e are cla · ified a le el 3 of fair alue hi rarchy. 

8. Financial risk management 

The ompan , bu ine acti itie arc xpo cd lo a varic1y of financial ri k , namely liquidit ri k, foreign cun-cncy 
ri sk and credit ri k. The ompany' management ha the o erall re pon ibilit for c. tablishing and uoverning 
th mpan ri k management frame, rk. Th' management i r pon ible ri r de loping and monitori nu the 
Compan ri k management policies . Th Company risk management policies arc estab li shed to identify and 
anal e the risk faced by the ornpanJ. t set and monitor appropriate ri k limit and con trol.., periodically review 
th change in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating 
action arc also placed before the Board of director fthe ompan . 

i. rcdit risk 

· ri . k i the risk of financial lo to the compan if a cu tamer or counterpart)' to a fin, 
f"/j 

contractual obligation and ari e principnlly from ompan ' · trade rcceivabl 

ng amou nt of financial a ets r pre cnts th e maximum credit exposure , hich is a 



rade recei ables 
ash and ca ' h equival nt 
ther financ in I asset 

Trade rccci able · 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
arl')·ing amount 

As at As ~11 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

0,632 -4.1 11 
-74 915 

1.896 1.806 
33, I02 26,833 

Trade recei ab le are pical l un ecur d and are deri ed fr m re enue arned fr m cu tomer . . The comp,111y have 
an ut landing trade receivable amounting to R .30,632 from B ·SCO 1 a of 31st March 2023. I\ per Power 
Purchase /\.greemcnt (PP/\) with BES OM, P wer Price is agreed at R .8.4/- per unit & invoice rai dace rdi11gly. 
BE · 0 I paid onl Rs.4.36/- per unit against R .8.40/- per unit tating delay in th commissioning of1he project b 
the com pany. The company has appealed lo KERC for re lea c of lhc balance Rs.4.04/- per unit. for , hich KER ha: 
ruled the Appeal in BE O fa our. The compan ha nppeal d to th Karnntaka I ligh ourt. · per uprcme 

urt deci i n the company ha withdrawn the ea e before I ligh ourt of Karnalaka and has riled the nppeal be fem.: 
the /\PT · L The compan pur uant to the direction i ucd b I the Hon'b le /\.ppellatc Tribunal of Ele ·tricity 
("' PTEL .. ) vid common ord -r dated 24.1 1 ,_O_~ pa - ed in ppcal o.182 of 2021 along with connected matter. 
(" ' 0 111111 011 Order ') appr ached th e KER Bc11galuru. The KER 13engaluru all wed lhe petition. rdcr ha · passed 
b the KER on 21.03 .202J. The de la i condoned in co111111 i ion ing of lar Power Projcc1 b the pet it ioncr and 
con ·equenll tariff of R 8.40 r cr unit i allowed as agreed in PP/\. 

Ca hand cash cqui alcnl 

Th ornpan held ea h and en h equi alent with credit worth bank a at the rep rting date , hich ha bt:en 
mea ured n the 12-month expected lo s ba i . . The credit worthines of such banks and financial i11stitutio11. arc 
e aluated b the management on an ongoim.!. basis a11d i con idcred to b good with I w credit ri k. 

ii. Liquidit Risk 

iquidity ri k is Lhc ri sk that th e company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligation, a oeiated , ith fin ancial 
liabilitie that arc settled b deli eri11g ea h or an ther financial a et. The mpany manal!cs liquidit ri k by 
maintaining adequate re rve __ banking fa ilitie and re rve b rro, in g facilities , b co11tinuo11sly monitori ng 
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profile f financial a et and liabilitic . The ompan_ ha. 
acce to a ufficient ariet of ourc f funding. I laving regard lo the natur r th busine wherein the 

ompan is able lo generate fixed cash now over a period of time and t ptimizc the co l of funding. the ompany. 
from time to time, fund it long -term inve tment fr m h rt-tern, sourc . The hort-term borrO\ in g can be roll 
forward or. if required, can be refinanced from long lcrm borrowings. In nddition. processe and pol icies rdated t) 
uch ri k are over een by enior manap_ement. 

The table below provide detail regarding the contractual maturiti es of significant financial liabilitie as at I March 
202 and I March 2022. 

Par1icuhus 

B rrowings 
Trade Pa ables 
0th r Financ ia I Liabilili s 
Total 

Particulars 

Borrowin > 

ble 
cial Liabilities 

Le s than 
one year 

2. 80 
-g3 

4,1 T' 
7 636 

Less than 
one year· 

2,880 
602 
1 5 

3 617 

As at 31 M ar·ch 2023 

1-2 years 

0 

2,880 

at 31 

1-2 ·cars 

2.880 

2,880 

2 yc:u ant.I 
above 

19222 

19,222 

M~irch 2022 

2 years anti 
above 

19.561 

19,56 L 

Total 

24.98_ 
583 

4.17 
29,738 

Tolal 

_5.321 

6 2 
13 

26,058 



iii Foreign urrcncy Risk 
The ompany' op rati n are largely within India and hence the c.xposurc lo foreign currenc , ri k. i cry minimal. 

26. otc on Payment for .Farmer's S hare 

a. /\ . per Power Purcha e Agreement (PPA) \ ith B ·S O , Power Price is agreed al Rs.8.4/- per unit & invoi c 
raised according! . BESC M paid only Rs.4. 6/- p r unit again t R .8.40/- p r unit tating delay in the 

mmi ioning of the project by the company. The compnny h·1s appl:alcd I KER for release f the balance 
Rs .. 04/- per unit. ~ r, hich KER ha ruled the ppeal in BE CO \' fa ur. The company ha. appealed l J 

th Karnataka I ligh ourt . per the dir ti ns of the 11 n"blc Supreme Court, the company ha wit hdrawn it" 
app li cu ti 11 made before the hon ' ble Hi gh Cou11 of Karnataka and ha filed an app al before the /\PTEL e" 

elhi a0 ain t the K R Order. 

The compan pur uanl to the direction i ued b the Hon·b le ppellatc Tribunal of · lectric ity (' · PTEL") vidc 
common order dated 2 .11 .-022 pa sed in Appeal o.182 of 2021 along , ith co11nectcd mailer (.. ommon 
Order"') approached the KERC Benga lurn. 

The KERC Bengaluru allowed the petition, the fo lio, ing order has pas cd by the K · RC on 2 1.0 .2023 
a) The petition are allowed. 
b) The dela i condoned in commi sio11ing of olar Po, er Projects by the petitione r. nnd 

con cquently tar iff of R 8.40 per uni t i allO\ ed a agreed i11 PP . 
c) The re p ndent · · 0 are directed not I le y liquatecl damages and if nlrendy levied the 

sn 111 ha ll be refi111clecl lo the Petitioner within two month . 
d The Petiti ner arc enlitled r r inter tat the rate f 10% p.a. fir differential tariff for the 

period from the da te of OD till da te of payment. 
e) The Re p ndent E M ar · directed to make pa 'ment wit h i111cre t wit hin 90 clay · from 

the date oft hi rcler falling, hich the Peti tioner i entitled for Late Payment Surclrnrgc from 
the elate of default till rea lization. 

After lh Final Judge ment is passed by KERC Banga lu ru. the ba lance amount of Rs.6,5 16 ( 16 12.898 uni t. 
R .4.04) for the ear FY 2022-23, Rs.6 26 1 ( 15. 9,649 unit Rs .. 04 for the ar FY 202 1-_2_ R . 6.06C 
( 15,02, 159 uni t X R . . 04) ~ r the year PY 2020-21 R .5,989 ( 14,82,549 un it X R .4.04) for th e FY 20 19-20. 
R . 5.084 ( 12.58.491 unit X R .4.0 ) for the FY 20 18-19 and R .975 (-. 1.309 unit Rs.4.0 ) r r the FY _Q 17-
18 will be rec crnbl by th eompan a per th order. Also. the liquidated damage paid earl ier of R . 1,000 i. 
also rcc verable. The inter t entitl ed 011 th e differential tar iff and liquidated damage recov rab le \ ill be 
a c uni don rece ipt ba i . 

b. The tota l amount of R , 4,05 (Rs.0.53 76,47.055) to paid lo th Farm r a per •10 from cptembcr _Q 17 
till ar h 2023, ha been rec gni z din the Financia l talcment in th current finan cial year. since the compan) 
i now cc1tain to rea li ze tht.: amount from BES M owing to the K · R Ord r. Thi. amount will be paid once 
the amount i realiz d from BE I. 

27. Financial Ratio 
Th Ratio fo r the ears ended March 3 1,2023 :rnd larch 31,202_ nre a fo li o, 

Particulars De nominator 

et 
ies (Debt 

A vcrage Tracie Receivable 

Income ge nerated from Ti 
lnve tment In 

A at Ma,·ch 3 1, 

2023 2022 

-LOS 6.96 

0.29 0.30 

0.79 

0.60 

9.27% 

8.83% 

A 

Va1iancc 
(in%) 

(4 1. 82) 

(4. 30) 

(36. 70) 

(5 .02) 

(72.90 

A 



- Earnings b fore Interest, Taxe , Depreciation and Amortization 
EB IT - Ea rnin g before lntere ·t and Taxe 
\l rki ng api1al - urr nt A et I Current Liabilitie 

ap ital Employed - Tota l A set le Current Liabilities 
hareholder quit - hare capital plus 0th r Equit_ 

[x plan:1ti on: -
I . he adver c impact in Curr nt Ratio is due to increase in Curr nl Liability b cau 
. The adverse impact in Debt er ice Coverag Ratio is due lo reduction in EB ITDA 

during thi f inancia l ar. 

f R yalty Pa able provi ion. 
n recognising Royall Pr ision 

. The adverse im pact in Ret urn on · quity Ra ti du to reduction in et Profit on rc<.:ognising Roya lty Pn vision. 
4. The ad r e impact in et Profit Ratio i duet reduction in t Pr fit on r cogni ing R al Pro i i n. 
- . Th advers impact in Return on apitnl Employed i due t rcducti n in et Profit on recognising Roya lty Prov ision . 

28. Segment Rcportin 

The ompany i mainl engaged in the bu ine. ofgcnerat i n and · I ling of power in India. Ba cd on the infom1ation 
rep rted ~ r the purpose of res urce allocati n and a. e ment of perfonn nnce, there ar no reportab le segment in 
accordance ,. ith the requi rements of Indian Accounting Standard I 08-' perating gment ·'. notified under the 
Companie (Indian cc unting tandard ) Rule , 20 I 5. 

29. On arch 24,202 1.the 1111 t of orporal ffair M )throughanotificati n.amcnded chedul Ill ofthe 
rnpnn ie. /\et, 20 13 and the amendments nrc nppl icab le for 11nancial periods commencing fr m April I , 202 1. The 

ompan ha eva luated the effect of th amendment on its financial tatement ' and c 111plicd, ith the ame. 

In order lo simplify numerical data and enhance the clarity f our pre 'entat ion , e ha e rounded figure · to the neare t 
thou and a per the requirement of Ind S chcd ule Ill m ndrncnts. While thi appr <1ch help lo make data ea 1cr 
10 interpret, it can sometimes re ult in a total mi smatch between indiv id ual fi gure and their st1111 whe n rounded. 

30. Additiom1I rcgulalory information 
a) Details of benami property held 

o pr cecdings ha e been initiated on r are pending aga in t th e ompan under th e Prohibition of Oenam i 
Prop rty ransactions Act, 1988 (as ame nded in 2016) (formerly the Bena mi Transaction (Prohi bition) Act. 1988 
(45 of 1988)) and Rule mad th rcun<l r. 

b) Borrowing ccurecl again ·t current ~1s ets 
Th mpan ha borrowing limit sanctioned from banks and financial in titutions on the basis of ecurity f 
curr nt a et. . The quarterly returns or talemenls fi led by th e Company wi th bank and financial in ti tution are in 
agre ment \ ith th books of ace uni . (i R lation hip with truck ff corn panic 

c) Wilful <l e faultcr 
The ompan ha n t been declar d , ilful d fau lt r by any bank < r fi nancial in ti tuti on r government or any 
government authorit . 

d) Relationship with struck off compitnies 
The ompany ha no tran acti n with the c mpanic lru k ff under rnpani Act. _013 r 0111pan1e et. 
1956. 

c) ompliance , ith number of layers of companic 
The ompany ha complied with the number of layers prescribed under cction 2(87) of the ompanies Act , 2013 
read with ompanies (R lriction of number f la •er ) Rul . 2017. 

·ation of borrowed fund s and ·hare premium 
y ha 1101 advanced or I aned r inve t d fund Lo any other person(s) or cnti ty(i . includi nu fo reign 

edia ries) with the under. tanding that the Intermediary sha ll : 
· indirect! lend r inve t in th r per ons r entiti identified in any m,. :J.kt•~l,;.\:,O;'t or on 

r ,. ompan Ultimate Bencficiarie ) or 
' Gi y 0 uarantee, security or the lik to or on beha lf of the ultimate bcncficiarie 

--~ 



The company has not received any fund from any pcrson(s) or enti ty(ic ), including foreign entitie ( · unding Part 
wi1h the under landing \ h ther record d in writing r othcnvi ) that th mpany shal l: 

a. directly or indir ctly lend or invest in other p r on or entities identifi ·d in an manner\ hat ocver by or n 
behalf of 1he Funding Party ( hi mate 13 neficiarie ) r 

b. provide any guarantee, ecurity or the lik on behalf f the ultimat beneficiari s 

g) ndisclosed income 
There i no incom urr ndered or di lo cd a inc me during the current r pre iou year in the tax a e. smcnts 
under th Income Tax Act. 1961 , I hat has not been recorded in the books of account. 

h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company ha n t trad d or inve ted in crypto currenc or virtual urrenc during th - current or prcviou. year. 

i) Valuation of 11ropcrty, plant mul equipment, int.tngible as cl and investment property 
Th mpan ha not reva lued it property, plant and equipment (including right-of-u ea set ) or intangible as. cl 
or both during the current or previous year. 

j) Other regulatory information Rcgislr:1tion of charges or satisfaction with Hcgist rar of ompanic 
There are no char •c or ati faction , hich are ycl t b · regi tered \ ith the Rcgi trar f ompanic beyond the 
slatutor period. 

3 I. The Co111pc111 ha a proces , hereby peri dically all long-term c ntract are as e scd for material fore ceablc lo . cs. 
At the year-end the company ha. re iewed all such c ntract and confirmed that no pro i ion i required to be er atcd 
und r any la, / accounting tandard tO\ ards any fore eeable lo e . 

32. Pr- iou year' figur are r group d / rearranged, \ here nece ary. to confirm lo the current year's cla ificati( 11 / 

di closure. 

s per our report 

or B D ' C , _...--~~ For Swell r Energy Pri ate Limited 
hartered Accountant 

·1m1 o: 01641 -

C 

hhawat - Pa 
Member hip o: _ 14520 
Plac : hennai, 
Oat : -2.05.2023 

,... 

Sunn~.lain 
Director 
DI : 07544759 
Plac : Bcngaluru Place: Beng.aluru 


